No. S178241

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF CALIFORNIA

JESSICA PINEDA, Plaintiff and Appellant,

v.

WILLIAMS-SONOMA STORES, INC., a California Corporation, Defendant and Respondent.

After a Decision by the Court of Appeal of the State of California
Fourth Appellate District, Division One

Case No. D054355

MAR 1 2 2019

Frechtskill On

On Appeal from the Superior Court of the County of San Diego
The Honorable Ronald S. Prager
Case No. 37-2008-00086061-CU-BT-CTL

OPENING BRIEF ON THE MERITS

Gene J. Stonebarger, Esq. (209461) Richard D. Lambert, Esq. (251148) STONEBARGER LAW A Professional Corporation 75 Iron Point Circle, Suite 145 Folsom, CA 95630

I.	INTRODUCTION					
II.	ISSUE PRESENTED					
III.	FAC	FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY				
	A. 7	A. The Facts				
	B. F	B. Procedural History				
IV.	ARGUMENT					
	A.	The Express Definition Of Personal Identification Information Found in Section 1747.08 Includes Zip Codes	5			
	В.	The Reality That Williams-Sonoma Is Actually Using Credit Card Customers' Zip Codes to Identify Them And Obtain Their Respective Home Addresses Confirms That Zip Codes Constitute "Personal Identification Information" For The Purposes Of Section 1747.08	7			
	C.	The Legislative History Behind Section 1747.08 Confirms The Legislature Specifically Intended To Prohibit Retailers From Engaging In The Very Conduct at Issue In This Case	8			
	D.	Section 1747.08 Should Be "Liberally Construed" To Further Its Remedial Purpose	10			
V.	CON	ICLUSION	13			

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

STATE CASES
<u>Continental Cas. Co. v. Phoenix Constr. Co.,</u> (1956) 46 Cal.2d 423
<u>Florez v. Linens 'N Things,</u> (2003) 108 Cal.App.4th 447
Hassan v. Mercy American River Hospital, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 709
Manufacturers Life Ins. Co. v. Superior Court, (1995) 10 Cal.4th 257
Palacin v. Allstate Ins. Co., (2004) 119 Cal.App.4th 855
Party City Corp. v. Superior Court, (2008) 169 Cal.App.4 th 497
People ex rel. Dep't. of Transp. v. Muller, (1984) 36 Cal.3d 263
People ex rel. Lungren v. Superior Court, (1996) 14 Cal.4th 294
<u>People v. Gonzalez,</u> (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th 14056
Peterson v. Grieger, Inc., (1961) 57 Cal.2d 43
The TJX Companies, Inc. v. Superior Court, (2008) 163 Cal.App.4th 80
<u>Young v. Bank of America,</u> (1983) 141 Cal.App.3d 10811

STATE STATUTES California Civil Code § 1747.08 passim California Civil Code § 3541 10 California Health & Safety Code §25249.7(b)(1) 12 CALIFORNIA RULES OF COURT 5 California Rules of Court, Rule 8.124 5 California Rules of Court, Rule 8.130 5 California Rules of Court, Rule 8.264(b)(3) 5 California Rules of Court, Rule 8.500(e)(1) 5

CASE NO. S178241

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF CALIFORNIA

)
vs.)
WILLIAMS-SONOMA STORES, INC., Defendant and Respondent.))))

OPENING BRIEF ON THE MERITS

I INTRODUCTION

Williams-Sonoma Stores, Inc. (herein "Williams-Sonoma") is deceptively obtaining its customers' home addresses during credit card transactions. Williams-Sonoma collects its customers' zip codes under the false pretense that the information is required to process credit card transactions. It then utilizes the customers' names (captured from the credit cards) and zip codes to acquire the customers' respective home addresses. This is accomplished with the help of one or more third-party credit reporting agencies with proprietary databases that "match" a credit card customer's name and zip code with the customer's home address. Simply

put, knowing a customer's zip code allows Williams-Sonoma to specifically identify the customer's address from the haystack of people with the same name. Through this process, Williams-Sonoma has obtained hundreds of thousands, if not millions, of its credit card customers' home addresses during the proposed class period.

The California Legislature long ago recognized the dangers associated with collecting and maintaining consumers' personal identification information, finding that the practice put the physical safety of consumers at risk and jeopardized consumers' financial security due to identity theft and credit card fraud. The Legislature was also concerned that consumers were mistakenly being led to believe that the requested information was necessary to complete their credit card transactions, when in fact, it was not. (See Appendix of Exhibits at Tab 3, pp. 85, 106, 107, 135.) In response, the Legislature enacted California Civil Code § 1747.8 et seq. in 1990 (herein "Section 1747.08").

To accomplish the remedial purposes of Section 1747.08, the Legislature intentionally defined "personal identification information" broadly to prohibit the requesting and recording of any information "concerning" the cardholder that was not set forth on the credit card. Cal. Civ. Code § 1747.08(b) (emphasis added). Section 1747.08's black letter definition of "personal identification information" includes a customer's zip code. The fact that Williams-Sonoma actually uses its credit card customers' zip codes to specifically identify them and obtain their home addresses further mandates that the express definition be interpreted to include zip codes in this case. Williams-Sonoma is engaging in the exact conduct the Legislature sought to prohibit.

ISSUE PRESENTED

Does a retailer violate the Song-Beverly Credit Card Act of 1971 (Civ. Code, §1747 et seq.), which prohibits a retailer from recording a customer's "personal identification information" when the customer uses a credit card in a transaction, by recording a customer's zip code for the purpose of later using it and the customer's name to obtain the customer's address through a reverse search database?

Ш

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

A. The Facts

Williams-Sonoma (1) deceptively requests its credit card customers' zip codes under the guise of needing them to process their credit card transactions, which customers are accustomed to providing at gas stations for legitimate verification purposes, (2) covertly captures customers' names from their credit cards, and (3) utilizes all of this information to pinpoint and specifically identify the customers' respective home addresses with the help of one or more third-party credit reporting agencies.

The Court of Appeal accurately stated the factual recitations alleged in the complaint and assumed the truth of the following facts pursuant to Palacin v. Allstate Ins. Co., (2004) 119 Cal.App.4th 855, 861:

Jessica Pineda visited a store in California owned by Williams-Sonoma and selected an item to purchase. Opinion, p. 2. She then went to the cashier to pay for the item with her credit card. <u>Id</u>. The cashier asked for her zip code, but did not tell her the consequences if she declined to provide the information. <u>Id</u>. Believing that she was required to provide her zip code to complete the transaction, Pineda provided the information. <u>Id</u>. The cashier recorded it into the electronic cash register and then completed

the transaction. <u>Id</u>. At the end of the transaction, Williams-Sonoma had Pineda's credit card number, name and zip code recorded in its databases. <u>Id</u>.

Williams-Sonoma then used customized computer software to perform reverse searches from databases that contain millions of names, email addresses, residential telephone numbers and residential addresses, and are indexed in a manner that resembles a reverse telephone book. <u>Id</u>. Williams-Sonoma's software then matched Pineda's now-known name, zip code or other personal information with her previously unknown address, thereby giving the Store access to her name and address. <u>Id</u>. Williams-Sonoma then maintains all this information in a database. <u>Id</u>.

B. Procedural History

Pineda filed her Complaint against Williams-Sonoma on June 18, 2008. (Exhibit 1¹, pp. 1-14.)

On or about July 12, 2008, Williams-Sonoma filed a demurrer to the Complaint arguing (1) that zip codes can never constitute "personal identification information" as that term is defined in Section 1747.08, and (2) that Pineda did not, and could not, allege a protectable privacy right, or a reasonable expectation of privacy in her home address, or any other information acquired by Williams-Sonoma. (Exhibits 2-4, pp. 15-314.) Pineda filed her Opposition to Williams-Sonoma's Demurrer (Exhibits 5-6, pp. 315-361), Williams-Sonoma filed its Reply Brief (Exhibits 7-8, pp. 362-370), and the hearing on the Demurrer was held on October 2, 2008. On October 3, 2008, the Trial Court entered an Order sustaining the Demurrer. (Exhibit 11, pp. 386-389.)

¹ For the purposes of convenience, all references to "Exhibit" shall refer to the Appendices submitted by Pineda to the Court of Appeal, unless otherwise noted.

The Trial Court sustained Williams-Sonoma's demurrer to Pineda's Section 1747.08 claim on the grounds that zip codes can never constitute Personal Identification Information for purposes of that section. <u>Id</u>. The basis for the Trial Court's ruling is set forth in the transcript of the October 2, 2008 hearing, which has been designated under the California Rules of Court, Rule 8.130, as the Reporter's Transcript on Appeal. Judgment was entered by the Trial Court on October 29, 2008. (Exhibit 13, pp. 395-401.) The Notice of Entry of Judgment was served on Pineda by mail on October 31, 2008. (Exhibit 14, pp. 402-411.)

Pineda filed her Notice of Appeal from Judgment on December 22, 2008, along with her Notice of Election to Proceed Under California Rules of Court, Rule 8.124, and Notice Designating Reporter's Transcript Under California Rules of Court, Rule 8.130. (Exhibit 15, pp. 412-414.)

The Fourth District Court of Appeal filed its Opinion in this matter on October 8, 2009. On October 23, 2009, before this decision became final, the Court of Appeal filed an Order Certifying Opinion for Publication. Pursuant to California Rules of Court, Rule 8.264(b)(3), the decision of the Court of Appeal became final on November 22, 2009. Pineda filed her Petition for Review in the Supreme Court of California pursuant to California Rules of Court, Rule 8.500(e)(1) on November 25, 2009. The Supreme Court Granted Pineda's Petition for Review on February 10, 2010.

IV

ARGUMENT

A. The Express Definition Of Personal Identification Information Found In Section 1747.08 Includes Zip Codes

Section 1747.08's definition of "personal identification information" is clear and unambiguous. "Personal identification information" is

expressly defined as "information concerning the cardholder, other than information set forth on the credit card, and including, but not limited to, the cardholder's address and telephone number." Cal. Civ. Code § 1747.08(b) (emphasis added). In setting forth the two specific examples, however, the Legislature was careful not to limit the breadth of the statute. "Use of the language 'including, but not limited to' in the statutory definition is a phrase of enlargement rather than limitation." People v. Gonzalez, (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th 1405, 1414. Like an address and telephone number, a cardholder's zip code "concerns" the cardholder. Further zip codes are not written or otherwise set forth on credit cards. Because zip codes constitute "information concerning the cardholder" that is not set forth on the credit card, they fall squarely within the definition of "personal identification information" supplied in Section 1747.08(b).²

Instead of this straight forward express definition set forth in Section 1747.08(b), the Trial Court and the Court of Appeal applied a much more restrictive definition of "personal identification information." Specifically, the Trial Court and Court of Appeal inserted additional criteria into the definition and required that the information be "unique" to the cardholder, rather than merely "concerning" the cardholder as set forth in the express definition. Exhibit 11, pp. 386-389; Opinion, p. 5.

² Civil Code section 1747.08(d) further provides that retailers may request "reasonable forms of positive identification, which may include a driver's license or a California state identification card...provided that none of the information contained thereon is written or recorded..." Cal. Civ. Code § 1747.08(d) (emphasis added). Zip codes are set forth on all California Driver's Licenses, as well as on all California state identification cards. As such, subpart (d) specifically prohibits retailers from recording zip codes, which further evidences that the Legislature intended zip codes to fit within the definition of "personal identification information."

The Fourth District Court of Appeal further relied on its prior decision in Party City Corp. v. Superior Court, (2008) 169 Cal. App. 4th 497, wherein it stated that zip codes were not "unique" and were not "similar" to addresses or telephone numbers, because zip codes are not specific to an individual. Opinion, p. 5. Importantly, none of these additional criteria are found anywhere in Section 1747.08. If the Legislature had wanted to use this standard, it would have expressly defined personal identification information to be "information that is <u>unique</u> to the cardholder, <u>similar</u> to an address or telephone number." The additional criteria of being "unique" and the subjective criteria of being "similar to an address or telephone number" simply do not apply as they are not found in the express definition of "personal identification information," which includes any information "concerning" the cardholder that is not set forth on the credit card. Cal. Civ. Code § 1747.08(b)

B. The Reality That Williams-Sonoma Is Actually Using Credit Card Customers' Zip Codes To Identify Them And Obtain Their Respective Home Addresses Confirms That Zip Codes Constitute "Personal Identification Information" For The Purposes Of Section 1747.08

Williams-Sonoma argues tongue-in-cheek that zip codes are not "personal identification information" despite that its sole purpose for requesting and recording them is to specifically identify its credit card customers and obtain their respective home addresses. To the extent Section 1747.08's broad definition of "personal identification information" is unclear, surely information that is actually being used to specifically

³ Of course, addresses and telephone numbers are often not unique to an individual and are typically shared, albeit by family or group living arrangements.

identify customers must fall within the intended definition. As the old saying goes "if it walks like a duck, quacks like a duck, and looks like a duck, it must be a duck." Williams-Sonoma has obtained hundreds of thousands, if not millions, of its credit card customers' home addresses by requesting and recording their zip codes during credit card transactions.

C. The Legislative History Behind Section 1747.08 Confirms The Legislature Specifically Intended To Prohibit Retailers From Engaging In The Very Conduct At Issue In This Case

The Background Summary for AB 2920, which became California Civil Code section 1747.8 and was subsequently renumbered to Section 1747.08, articulates the problem to be addressed by the statute regarding retailers' collection of unnecessary personal information from consumers during credit card transactions. Under the heading "The Problem," the Legislature found that:

Consumers are led to mistakenly believe that such additional information is a necessary condition to complete the credit card transaction, when, in fact, it is not. Retailers acquire this additional personal information for their own business purposes – for example, to build a mailing list which they can subsequently use for their own in-house marketing efforts, or sell to direct mail specialists or to others.

(Exhibit 3, pp. 85, 135.)

This is exactly what Williams-Sonoma does. Williams-Sonoma preys on its credit card customers who are accustomed to providing their zip codes for legitimate verification purposes at gas stations during "pay at pump" transactions and mistakenly assume that Williams-Sonoma is

requesting their zip codes to process their credit cards.⁴ But in reality, Williams-Sonoma's sole intent is to use its customers' zip codes to obtain their home addresses for its own business purposes, including to build a marketing database. It would defeat the express purpose of Section 1747.08 if retailers were prohibited from collecting customers' telephone numbers and addresses directly, but allowed to covertly obtain this very information through the even more deceptive practice of collecting customers' zip codes under the guise of needing this information to process credit card transactions.

The Court of Appeal failed to consider what the <u>Florez</u> Court found to be the Legislature's "obvious purpose" for enacting Section 1747.08 – to "prevent retailers from 'requesting' personal identification information and then *matching* it with the consumer's credit card number." <u>Florez v.</u>

<u>Linens 'N Things</u>, (2003) 108 Cal.App.4th 447, 453 (emphasis added).⁵ In <u>Florez</u>, the Court described retailers' efforts to obtain information about consumers as "[a]ssembling the various pieces of the puzzle" to create a record of the respective consumer's name, credit card number, telephone

⁴ Most gas stations require cardholders to provide their zip codes to verify the billing address tied to the credit card in an effort to prevent against credit card fraud during "pay at pump" transactions (this information is processed through the issuing bank and not actually shared with the gas stations). The conduct of gas stations in engaging in this practice does not violate Section 1748.08(a), as the conduct would fall under the exceptions set forth in Section 1747.08(c), which will be more fully explained through expert testimony in the Trial Court if this matter is allowed to proceed.

⁵ See Florez, 108 Cal.App.4th at 451 ("This bill would prohibit requesting or requiring" personal information '[s]ince the card issuer already has that information, there is no need for the retailer to request it (some retailers request it for mailing list purposes).") (quoting Enrolled Bill Report of the California Department of Consumer Affairs, Assembly Bill No. 1477 (1991-1991 Reg. Sess.)).

number, and address. Florez, 108 Cal.App.4th at 449.

Section 1747.08 must be interpreted to further the statute's purpose and cannot be interpreted in a way that allows retailers to circumvent the statute. "An interpretation which gives effect is preferred to one which makes void." Cal. Civ. Code § 3541. "These canons [of judicial interpretation] generally preclude judicial construction that renders part of the statute 'meaningless or inoperative." Hassan v. Mercy American River Hospital, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 709, 715-16 (citing Manufacturers Life Ins. Co. v. Superior Court, (1995) 10 Cal.4th 257, 274). Section 1747.08 would be rendered void, meaningless and inoperative if retailers are able to obtain customers' home addresses by requesting their zip codes during credit card transactions.

D. Section 1747.08 Should Be "Liberally Construed" To Further Its Remedial Purpose

The Court of Appeal's strict construction of Section 1747.08 is contrary to (1) California case law finding that the Song-Beverly Credit Card Act in general, as well as the specific section at issue here, must be liberally construed, (2) controlling California precedent that remedial statutes are to be liberally construed, and (3) the California Supreme Court's holding in People ex rel. Lungren v. Superior Court, (1996) 14 Cal.4th 294, 305, that the rule of strict construction of penal statutes applies to criminal not civil statutes.

First, the Court of Appeal followed <u>Party City</u> in finding that "the definitions in the Act that give rise to exposure to this mandatory civil penalty should be strictly construed." <u>Party City Corp.</u>, 169 Cal.App.4th at 511. The Court of Appeal ignored California authority *directly on point* finding that the Song-Beverly Credit Card Act is "remedial in nature and in

the public interest [and] is to be *liberally construed* to the end of fostering its objectives." Young v. Bank of America, (1983) 141 Cal. App. 3d 108, 114 (emphasis added). In construing the identical section of the Credit Card Act that is at issue in this case, the Florez Court further surmised that: "Section 1747.8 is part of the Song-Beverly Credit Card Act, designed to promote consumer protection. The [A]ct imposes fair business practices for the protection of the consumers. Such a law is remedial in nature and in the public interest [and] is to be *liberally construed* to the end of fostering its objectives." Florez, 108 Cal.App.4th at 450 (citing Young, 141) Cal.App.3d at 114) (emphasis added) (internal quotations omitted). The Court of Appeal should have followed the same liberal construction principles and concluded that a zip code does constitute "personal identification information" or "information concerning the cardholder" as defined in the statute; especially considering that Williams-Sonoma is actually utilizing its customers' zip codes to obtain their respective home addresses.

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