# S178241

In the Supreme Court

OF THE

California

COURTCORP

v.

WILLIAMS-SONOMA STORES, INC., a California Corporation Defendant and Respondent.

SUPREME COURT FILED

AFTER DECISION BY THE COURT OF APPEAL OF THE STATE OF APR 12 2010 CALIFORNIA.

> FOURTH APPELLATE DISTRICT, DIVISION ONE Appeal No. D054355

Frederick K. Ohlrich Clerk

Deputy

ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO HONORABLE JUDGE RONALD S. PRAGER Case No. 37-2008-00086061-CU-BT-CTL

> RESPONDENT WILLIAMS-SONOMA STORES, INC.'S REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE IN SUPPORT OF ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS AND [PROPOSED] ORDER THEREON

SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & HAMPTON LLP P. CRAIG CARDON, CAL. BAR No. 168646 ELIZABETH S. BERMAN, CAL. BAR No. 252377 1901 AVENUE OF THE STARS, SUITE 1600 Los Angeles, California 90067 Tel: (310) 228-3700 CCARDON@SHEPPARDMULLIN.COM EBERMAN@SHEPPARDMULLIN.COM

Attorneys for Defendant and Respondent, WILLIAMS-SONOMA STORES, INC.

TO THIS HONORABLE COURT, PETITIONER AND HER ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:

Respondent WILLIAMS-SONOMA STORES, INC.

("Williams-Sonoma") respectfully requests that this Court take judicial notice of the following pursuant to California Evidence Code §459,

CALIFORNIA RULES OF COURT Rules 8.520(g) and 8.252(a), and other applicable authority:

1. The Enrolled Bill Report included in the legislative history of California Civil Code Section 1747.08(d), as added by Statutes of 1991, Chapter 1089, § 2 (AB 1477), a true and correct copy of which is attached as **Exhibit 1** hereto. *Casella v. Southwest Dealer Services* (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 1127, 1137 (holding the legislative history of a statute is the proper subject of judicial notice).

Williams-Sonoma further requests that this Court take judicial notice of the following public records (Cal. Evid. Code § 452(c)):

- Williams-Sonoma's public records request and the
   California Attorney General's response, true and correct copies of which are
   attached as Exhibit 2 hereto.
- 3. Williams-Sonoma's public records request and follow up letter to the San Diego County District Attorney, true and correct copies of which are attached as **Exhibit 3** hereto, to which Williams-Sonoma received no written response.

- 4. Williams-Sonoma's public records request and the San Diego City Attorney's response, true and correct copies of which are attached as **Exhibit 4** hereto.
- 5. Williams-Sonoma's public records request and the Los Angeles County District Attorney's response, true and correct copies of which are attached as **Exhibit 5** hereto.
- 6. Williams-Sonoma's public records request and the Los Angeles City Attorney's response, true and correct copies of which are attached as **Exhibit 6** hereto.
- 7. Williams-Sonoma's public records request and the San Francisco County District Attorney's response, true and correct copies of which are attached as **Exhibit 7** hereto.
- 8. Williams-Sonoma's public records request and follow up letter, and the San Francisco City Attorney's response, true and correct copies of which are attached as **Exhibit 8** hereto.

The Enrolled Bill Report from the legislative history of California Civil Code 1747.08(d) (Exhibit 1) is relevant to the appeal because it refutes Petitioner's arguments regarding subsection (d)'s role in interpreting subsections (a) and (b) by establishing that the addition of subsection (d) in an amendment a year after the enactment of subsections (a)-(c) was a non-substantive clarification which added no rights or remedies. Exhibits 2 through 8 are relevant to the appeal because they tend

song-Beverly, have not interpreted Song-Beverly in the way that Petitioner advocates, demonstrating the improbability that her interpretation is consistent with the Legislature's intent. Cal. R. Ct. 8.252(a)(2)(A).

These matters were not presented to the trial court. Cal. R. Ct. 8.252(a)(2)(B).

These matters do not relate to proceedings occurring after the judgment that is the subject of the appeal. Ca. R. Ct. 8.252(a)(2)(C).

Respectfully submitted,

Dated: April 8, 2010

SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & HAMPTON LLP

By

ELIZABETH S. BERMAN
Attorneys for Respondent

WILLIAMS-SONOMA STORES, INC.

# [PROPOSED] ORDER

Good cause appearing thereon, the Court hereby GRANTS

Williams-Sonoma's Request for Judicial Notice in Support of Answer Brief
on the Merits, and takes Judicial Notice of Exhibits 1 through 8 thereto.

Dated:	By:
	·
	Justice of the Supreme Court of California

c

Ì

3

, , ,

# ENROLLED BILL REPORT

Bus. Ph: 323-0399 Home Ph: 933-6314

AGENCY:	BILL NUMBER:
State and Consumer Services Agency	AB 1477
DEPARTMENT:	AUTHOR:
Department of Consumer Affairs	Areias

## BILL SUMMARY

This bill would make several cleanup changes to Assemblyman Areias' AB 2880 (Ch. 637) and AB 2920 (Ch. 999) of last year. The changes are described in Specific Findings.

### BACKGROUND

This bill is a cleanup of AB 2880 (Ch. 637, Stats. 1990) and AB 2920 (Ch. 999, Stats. 1990). The department and the author's office have received numerous requests for clarification on the two bills.

AB 2880 prohibits requiring consumers to show a credit card when making a purchase by check, with certain exceptions.

AB 2920 generally prohibits requiring consumers to provide personal information like a phone number or address when making a purchase by credit card.

# SPECIFIC FINDINGS

# Cleanup Amendments to AB 2880

Existing law prohibits persons accepting checks as payment for goods or services from, among other things, requiring the person to provide a credit card as a condition of accepting the check. However, the law permits "requesting" a credit card as an indication of creditworthiness or financial responsibility or as identification, if the only information recorded is the type of credit card, the issuer, "or" the expiration date.

This bill would further clarify that retailers may request, but not require, a credit card, if all that is recorded is the type of card, the issuer "and" the expiration date. These are clarifying, nonsubstantive changes that reflect the way the bill was to be interpreted. Replacing "or" with "and" clarifies that retailers may record all three of these items of information, rather than just one of them.

VOTE:	Assembly	Partisan R D	Senate	Partisan R D	
Floor:	73-0		Floor: 37-0		
Policy Committee:	13-0		Policy Committee: 8-0		
Fiscal Committee:		j	Piscal Committee:		
RECOMMENDATION TO GOVERNOR:					
SIGN A VETO NO POSITION DEFER TO OTHER AGENCY					
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR	<del>.</del>	DA BITTA	LATION CHOOMS OF	In a man	
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR	^* }	DATE:	AGENCY SECRETARY;	DATE:	
- Lanke Lax	الع	S. ix .91	Janne Thoore	9/9/9/	

Provided by Legislative Research Incorporated (800) 530-7613

1991-1089 Page 104 of 181

This bill also would limit these restrictions to sales or leases of goods or services at retail. This is also a clarifying, nonsubstantive change; AB 2880 was intended to apply only to retail (consumer) transactions. not wholesale (commercial) transactions.

In addition, the bill would require retailers requesting a credit card to inform customers that they do not have to display a credit card by either posting a sign or verbally informing check-writing customers. The sign's language ("Check writing ID: credit card may be requested but not required for purchases") was drafted by the California Retailers Association, with the consent of the California Grocers Association.

Existing law exempts check guarantee cards, among other things, from the above restrictions. Existing law does not define "check guarantee card."

This bill would define "check guarantee card" and would also exempt cards that act as both a credit card and a check guarantee card.

Existing law generally prohibits requiring a credit card or writing down a credit card number as a condition of accepting a check used to pay "in full or in part for goods or services." Thus, the existing law does not prohibit requesting a credit card or writing down a credit card number if the consumer is cashing the check "for cash."

This bill would specifically authorize merchants to request a credit card and write down the number if the customer is just receiving "cash back" and is not buying anything.

Existing law does not prohibit requiring reasonable identification, other than a credit card, such as a driver's license or a California state ID card, as a condition of accepting a check.

This bill would explicitly permit requiring, verifying and recording the purchaser's name, address and telephone number. It would also permit requesting or recording a credit card number on a check used to make a payment on that credit card account. It often happens that when making payment on a credit card account in person (e.g., at a department store or bank), the credit card number is recorded on the check to ensure it gets properly credited.

# II. Cleanup Amendments to AB 2920

Existing law prohibits requiring and then recording personal information (e.g., phone number and/or address) on a credit card holder as a condition of accepting a credit card. The existing law could be interpreted as permitting retailers to "request" but not "require" this information.

This bill would prohibit requesting or requiring that information. Since the card issuer already has that information, there is no need for the retailer to request it (some retailers request it for mailing list purposes).

<u>Existing law</u> exempts from the above restriction (1) cash advance transactions, (2) personal information that the person accepting the credit card is contractually obligated to provide to the credit card issuer to complete the transaction, and (3) personal information that is required for a special purpose incidental to the transaction, such as for shipping, servicing, delivery or installation of the goods or for special orders.

rovided by Legislative Research Incorporated (800) 530-7613

181 Page 105 of 181

This bill would in addition exempt transactions where the credit card is used as a deposit to secure payment in the event of default, loss, damage or other similar occurrence. The card holder's address and phone number are necessary when using a credit card to guarantee hotel reservations, renting a car, and similar transactions.

The bill also would specifically authorize the person accepting the card to require reasonable ID, including a driver's license or a California state ID card. This is a clarifying, nonsubstantive change; AB 2920 was never intended to prohibit asking for a driver's license or similar ID.

This bill is an urgency measure.

# Fiscal Impact

None.

Proponents: Author (sponsor)

American Express

BankCard Holders of America California Bankers Association California Retailers Association

CalPIRG

Consumer Action

Consumers Union

Department of Consumer Affairs

Opponents: None known

The purpose of this bill is to clarify Assemblyman Areias' AB 2880 and AB 2920 of last year. There is no known opposition.

# RECOMMENDATION

\*

SIGN. This is a good cleanup bill.

vided by Legislative Research Incorporated (800) 530-7613

1991-1089 Page 106 of 181

C

.



Suite 1600 | 1901 Avenue of the Stars | Los Angeles, CA 90067-6017 310-228-3700 office | 310-228-3701 fax | www.sheppardmullin.com

Writer's Direct Line: 310-228-3731 eberman@sheppardmullin.com

Our File Number: 04DG-139154

February 25, 2010

# VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY

Public Records Ombudsman P.O. Box 944255-2550 Sacramento, CA 95814 E-Mail: PublicRecords@doj.ca.gov

Re: Public Records Request re Enforcement Actions of

California Civil Code Section 1747.08 by California Attorney General

Dear Public Records Ombudsman:

We make the following request pursuant to the California Public Records Act of 2004, Government Code §§ 6250 et seq., and the California Constitution, Art. I, § 3(b).

The Song-Beverly Credit Card Act of 1970, California Civil Code § 1747.08 ("Song-Beverly"), provides that the "Attorney General... may bring an action in the superior court in the name of the people of the State of California to enjoin violation" of Song-Beverly. Cal. Civ. Code § 1747.08(f). Accordingly, Williams-Sonoma requests copies of all records maintained by the California Attorney General's office related to any enforcement action against a person or business for violation of Civil Code § 1747.08 on the basis that the defendant collected, recorded or otherwise used zip code information.

Please do not hesitate to contact me directly should you require further clarification of this request.

Very truly yours,

/s/

Elizabeth S. Berman

for SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & HAMPTON LLP

W02-WEST:1ESB1\402490931.1

# State of California DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE



300 SOUTH SPRING STREET, SUITE 1702 LOS ANGELES, CA 90013

Public: (213) 897-2000

Telephone: (213) 897-6027 Facsimile: (213) 897-4951

E-Mail: Michele.VanGelderen@doj.ca.gov

March 1, 2010

<u>Via Electronic Mail</u> eberman@sheppardmullin.com

Elizabeth S. Berman Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP 1901 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 1600 Los Angeles, CA 90067-6017

RE: Your Public Records Act Request re Enforcement of Civil Code Section 1747.08

Dear Ms. Berman:

This letter is in response to your correspondence dated February 25, 2010 in which you sought records pursuant to the Public Records Act, Government Code section 6250 et seq., and the California Constitution, Article I, Section 3(b).

Specifically, you requested "copies of all records maintained by the California Attorney General's office related to any enforcement action against a person or business for violation of Civil Code § 1747.08 on the basis that the defendant collected, recorded or otherwise used zip code information."

We have no public records that meet your request. Please call me at (213) 897-6027 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

MICHELE VAN GELDEREN

Michele R Van Helde

Deputy Attorney General

For

EDMUND G. BROWN JR.

Attorney General

MVG:

*	and the second of the second o	and the state of t	C. C. Colombia and Spatial School (St. 1 of September 1984).
	_		
			$\Box$

j



Suite 1600 | 1901 Avenue of the Stars | Los Angeles, CA 90067-6017 310-228-3700 office | 310-228-3701 fax | www.sheppardmullin.com

Writer's Direct Line: 310-228-3731 eberman@sheppardmullin.com

Our File Number: 04DG-139154

February 26, 2010

# VIA ELECTRONIC & U.S. MAIL

San Diego County District Attorney's Office Hall of Justice 330 W. Broadway San Diego, CA 92101 E-Mail: publicaffairs@sdcda.org

Re: <u>Public Records Request re Enforcement Actions of California Civil Code</u>

Section 1747.08 by San Diego County District Attorney

To Whom It May Concern:

We make the following request pursuant to the California Public Records Act of 2004, Government Code §§ 6250 et seq., and the California Constitution, Art. I, § 3(b).

The Song-Beverly Credit Card Act of 1970, California Civil Code § 1747.08 ("Song-Beverly"), provides that the "Attorney General, or any district attorney or city attorney within his or her respective jurisdiction . . . may bring an action in the superior court in the name of the people of the State of California to enjoin violation" of the statute. Civ. Code § 1747.08(f). Accordingly, Williams-Sonoma requests copies of all records maintained by the San Diego County District Attorney's office related to any enforcement action against a person or business for violation of Civil Code § 1747.08 on the basis that the defendant collected, recorded or otherwise used zip code information. In the event that the District Attorney has brought such an enforcement action, but does not maintain such records related to it, please provide the case name, case number, and court location in which such an enforcement action was filed.

Please do not hesitate to contact me directly should you require further clarification of this request.

Very truly yours,

Elizabeth S. Berman

for SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & HAMPTON LLP

W02-WEST:1ESB1\402492097.1



Suite 1600 | 1901 Avenue of the Stars | Los Angeles, CA 90067-6017 310-228-3700 office | 310-228-3701 fax | www.sheppardmullin.com

Writer's Direct Line: 310-228-3731 eberman@sheppardmullin.com

Our File Number: 04DG-139154

April 1, 2010

# VIA ELECTRONIC & U.S. MAIL

Mr. Richard Armstrong
Deputy District Attorney
San Diego County District Attorney's Office
Hall of Justice
330 W. Broadway
San Diego, CA 92101
E-Mail: publicaffairs@sdcda.org

Re: Public Records Request re Enforcement Actions of California Civil Code Section 1747.08 by San Diego County District Attorney

Dear Mr. Armstrong:

On March 1, 2010, you contacted me by telephone upon your receipt of the enclosed public records request. You referred me to Mr. Paul Leviko, who informed me that he performed a database search of the San Diego District Attorney's records and determined that there were no enforcement actions taken or filed by the San Diego District Attorney against a person or business for violation of California Civil Code § 1747.08 on the basis that the defendant collected, recorded or otherwise used zip code information. Before Mr. Leviko hung up the telephone on me, I requested that he send me this confirmation in writing. To date, we have not received such confirmation in writing.

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